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I am writing to lend my support to this licence review invoked by the anti social behaviour 
team, in respect of the Kho Kho Restaurant in Ruislip. 
 
Noise and disturbance through the playing of late night music, including live music on 
occasions, is causing unacceptable blight for local residents and breaches the Public 
Nuisance Licensing Objective. 
 
By whatever means the committee deem appropriate, this must cease immediately, 
whether that is to rescind the licence or to apply appropriate conditions. I am not anti 
business, but I'm afraid the continued failure on the part of the management to address this 
issue on request having been spoken to several times by LBH officers, does not inspire 
confidence that the second option will prove effective. 
 
Many thanks. 
 
Philip Corthorne  
    
Cllr Philip Corthorne 
West Ruislip Ward Councillor 
Chairman of Families, Health & Wellbeing Select Committee 
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Mr Steven Dormer 
The Licensing Service 
London Borough of Hillingdon 
Civic Centre 
High Street 
Uxbridge 
UB8 1UW 

Date: 22nd December 2021 

Dear Mr Dormer, 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
Kho Kho, 101-103 High Street, Ruislip, HA4 8JN 

I am writing to you as the Officer duly authorised to make representations on behalf of the 
Licensing Authority. This representation relates to the full Review of the above premises 
licence as submitted by Mr Adam Stitson, Team Leader of the Council’s Anti-Social 
Behaviour and Environment team (ASBET).  

The Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority fully supports ASBET in this matter and 
therefore wishes to make a representation based on the following licensing objectives: 

The prevention of public nuisance 
and 
Public Safety 

The prevention of public nuisance 

The Review Application clearly details the stepped-up enforcement approach which was 
undertaken by the ASBET team in order to secure compliance for noise nuisance towards 
stopping and restricting the noise emanating from the premises. Under the Licensing Act 
2003, ‘the prevention of public nuisance' is one of the four licensing objectives that have to 
be achieved by all licensed premises. Public nuisance matters include noise nuisance and 
addresses the kind of issues which can affect occupiers near a licensed premises. 

In this instance, repeated failures in complying with the advice given and the continuing 
problems associated with the non-observance of the licensing objectives by the premises 
licence holder, triggered the Review and necessitated the submission of this representation 
from the Licensing Authority. 
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The complaints as mentioned in the Review Application demonstrate in no uncertain terms 
that there were persistent and flagrant breaches of the licensing objectives at the premises 
over a period of two years which also includes the time during the pandemic. The history of 
the noise nuisance is mainly surrounding the extractor fan and loud amplified music arising 
from inside the premises. There were three Noise Abatement Notices served to the premises 
between October 2019 and October 2021 (Exhibits AS1, AS2 and AS3 of the Review 
Application).  
 
Exhibit AS1, served on 09 October 2019 and Exhibit AS2, served on 19 May 2021, were 
both relating to ‘noise emissions from the extractor ventilation system’.  
 
Exhibit AS3, served on 09 October 2021, was relating to ‘stop or cause to stop the excessive 
volume and bass noise from speakers’.  
 
Just a week after this, on 16 October 2021, officers on duty received a call regarding loud 
amplified music again emanating from Kho Kho. They soon visited the complainant’s 
dwelling and also another neighbour’s property to assess if the noise exceeded the permitted 
level. Exhibit AS4 in the Review Application, is a witness statement from the officer who 
visited both the properties and states that the noise observed that day would class as a 
statutory noise nuisance and additionally was a witnessed breach of the Noise Abatement 
Notice served only a week earlier. The officers spoke to Mr Nikhil Walia, who was managing 
the premises on the day and it appears that Mr Walia suggested that the flats upstairs should 
instead get their windows double glazed. He was advised by the officers that the 
responsibility to ensure that there is no occurrence of public nuisance is that of the operator 
of the licensed premises and not otherwise.  
 
A week from this, on 23 October 2021, officers on duty received another report of loud 
amplified noise arising from inside Kho Kho. On attending the complainant’s dwelling at 
23.00 hours they witnessed yet another statutory noise nuisance and a further breach to the 
Noise Abatement Notice served two weeks earlier. The officers visited the licensed premises 
after that and found that all the doors to the premises were open while loud music was 
playing inside the property. Condition 8 on the premises licence for Kho Kho explicitly states 
that ‘All windows and doors will be kept closed (except for entry and exit) at all times when 
regulated entertainment takes place’. Therefore, there was not just a further breach of the 
Noise Abatement notice but also a breach of their premises licence condition. This was 
communicated by the officers to the manager of the premises. Exhibit AS5 is the witness 
statements of both the officers who attended the premises and the complainant’s dwelling on 
the day.    
 
It can therefore be concluded that advice rendered by the ASBET Officers was not followed 
up with any noticeable improvements at the premises to rectify the situation. These were 
rather met with an apathetic attitude by the Management at the premises (as detailed in 
Exhibits AS4 and AS5)  and this sentiment accurately characterises the approach behind the 
running of this licensed premises. Careful and thorough consideration on the part of the 
licence holder and the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) towards the impact a venue 
can have on neighbours is of utmost importance and a good practice measure for any 
licensed premises.  
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Public Safety 
 
The recent event from 06 November 2021 further undermines the licensing objective of 
Public Safety. No adequate safety precautions or consent from the Council’s Licensing team 
were sought by the Management and the DPS at the premises before holding the fireworks 
display.  
 
It is evident from the complaints and the subsequent visit carried out by ASBET Officers, as 
detailed in Exhibit AS6 of the Review Application, that neighbours were anxious about the 
event as it was being held in a narrow alleyway where there was already a congregation of 
40-50 people barely 10 metres away from the display. Both Mr Nikhil Walia, the manager at 
the time, and , the organiser of the fireworks, failed to produce the 
insurance document and the fire risk assessment for the event to the officers. Meanwhile a 
local resident came running to the officers complaining that the debris from the fireworks is 
flying into their garden. Officer, Rakib Khaliq, took pictures of the area in which the display 
took place. These are available to be viewed in Exhibits RSK/01 through to RSK/07. It is 
important to note that any licensed premises have a duty of care to ensure the safety of their 
neighbours and visitors if they are having their own firework display. The Management and 
the DPS at the premises failed to alleviate the safety concerns of the residents and went 
ahead with the event regardless.  
 
The premises was also found to be breaching the COVID-19 restrictions, which were then in 
place, on two separate occasions. The premises was issued with two Fixed Penalty Notices 
(FPNs) from visits made to the premises by Licensing Officers on 16 October 2020 and 24 
February 2021, when the premises was found to be open and operating without any 
reasonable excuses.  
 
These FPNs were issued under Regulation 9(1) of The Health Protection (Coronavirus, 
Restrictions) (No. 2) (England) Regulations 2020, and Regulation 11(1) of The Health 
Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (All Tiers) (England) Regulations 2020 respectively. 
The second breach occurred even after warnings and efforts made by the authorities to 
assist the premises to operate in a compliant manner. This is extremely concerning that the 
Management and the DPS at the premises compromised on the safety of the members of 
public by operating irresponsibly and in complete breach of the Coronavirus Regulations at 
the time.  
 
The FPNs were later paid in full by the Premises Licence Holder. 
 
 
 
Management 
 
These series of breaches ranging from failures to comply with the licensing objectives under 
the Licensing Act 2003, to further breaches under The Health Protection (Coronavirus, 
Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020, show a pattern of non-compliance on the part of 
the Management at the premises.  
  
The current premises licence is in the name of Raaj Hospitality Ltd., of The Long Lodge, 
265-269 Kingston Road, London, SW19 3NW. Mr Aditya Nandlal of  

 is one of the three Directors in the company. He is also the named DPS 
on the premises licence. Mr Nikhil Walia is a de-facto manager at the premises whose name 
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has featured on multiple occasions in the various exhibits submitted by ASBET in their 
Review Application.  
 
Although led by Mr Nandlal, we believe that Mr Walia is well aware and is complicit in the 
way the premises has been run so far. The level of public nuisance that continues at this 
premises is unacceptable and the premises have been given more than enough opportunity 
to rectify the problems at hand. The management ability of both Mr Nandlal as the DPS and 
Mr Walia as the de-facto manager at the premises cast considerable concern that the 
licensing objectives will continue to be undermined and not be upheld in the future.  
 
In our view, new management should be installed so the premises is run to a satisfactory 
standard and that Mr Aditya Nandlal is removed as the DPS and is not given any control of 
the running of the premises in the future.  
 
We also fully support ASBET’s recommendation to exclude Regulated Entertainment from 
the licence. 
 
In conclusion, the failure on the part of the Management and the DPS to correct identified 
issues surrounding ‘public nuisance’ in a timely manner has resulted in a loss of confidence 
in them and with the present breakdown of trust, we believe that there is a risk of similar 
incidents occurring at the premises in the future unless appropriate measures are taken. 
 
I am happy to attend a hearing to verbally deliver my representation and to answer any 
questions that the Licensing Sub-Committee may have. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this matter, then please feel free to contact me. 
 
Jhini Mukherjee 
Licensing Officer 
jmukherjee@hillingdon.gov.uk 
T. 01895 277 230 
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